
One Team One Mission One Rock Hill 
 

 
  

 
  

 

 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

Monday, February 24, 2020 
6:00 p.m. – Comporium Conference Center @ Central Office 

A G E N D A  
 
 

 I.     Call to Order – Ja’Nyia Cunningham – Sunset Park Center for Accelerated Studies    
   Approval of Agenda 

 (Under consent agenda, all action items will be voted on after one motion and second to approve them without   

 discussion.  If a board member wants any action item discussed or voted on separately, the board member, before the  

 agenda is approved, must ask that the action item be moved to the discussion item section.) 
  
 
      II.     Recognitions 

A. Recognition of MLK, Jr. Essay Contest Winners 

B. Recognition of Dr. Sylvia Berry, Dreamkeeper Award Winner 
C. Recognition of Math Counts Winning Team – Sullivan Middle School 
D. Recognition of National Merit Finalists 

E. Recognition of Cole Bitting, US Air Force Academy Appointment 
F. Recognition of All-State Band Students 

 
 

III.    Citizen Participation  
 
     IV.    Consent Action Agenda 

A. Approval of Minutes 
1. January 13, 2020 work session 
2. January 16, 2020 called work session 

3. January 27, 2020 business meeting 
B. Approval of Personnel Recommendations 
C. Approval of April 14 Work Session Date 
D. Approval of July Combined Work Session/Business Meeting – July 20th  
 

  V.    Action Agenda   

A.  Approval of Section “L” Policies – Interorganizational Relations -2nd read  
  *LBA – Shared Services & Staff 
    *LDA – Student Teaching & Internships 

  *LH – Relations with Educational Accreditation Agencies  
       
B. Approval of Policy EEAE – Bus Safety Program – 2nd read 

 

 
 

 



One Team One Mission One Rock Hill 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C. Approval of Section “K” Policies – General Public Relations – 1st read 

*KA – School-Parent/Community Relations Goals/Priority Objectives 

*KB – Parent Involvement in Education 
*KC – Community Involvement in Education 

*KCA – School-Community Relations Goals/Priority Objectives 
*KBB – Parent Rights and Responsibilities 

*KCD – Public Gifts/Donations to Schools  
  

D. Approval of Section “G” Policies – Personnel – 1st read 
*GCB – Professional Staff Contracts and Compensation 

*GBA – Open Hiring/Equal Employment Opportunity 
*GCE/GCF – Professional Staff Recruitment and Hiring 
*GDF – Support Staff Hiring 
 

E.  Approval of Policy CBI – Evaluation of Superintendent – 1st read 

 
     VI.  Communications     

VII.  Report of the Superintendent 
A. Announcements  

 
 

VIII.  Review of School Board Work Session – February 10  
 
 

IX.  Other and Future Business 
 
 

X.  Executive Session(s) 
                  

XI.  Action as required from Executive Session(s) 
 
 
 

XII.  Adjournment 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: February 18, 2020  
SUBJECT: Call to Order at February 24th  School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Ja’Nyia Cunningham, a 5th grader at Sunset Park Center for Accelerated Studies, will 
provide the “Call to Order” at the February 24th school board meeting.  
 
Ja’Nyia: 

• Is a member of the Junior Beta Club and Student Council 
• Is a member of the Robotics Team and Math Olympiads 
• Is a member of the Safety Patrol and Optimist Club 
• Is a member of the Fellowship of Christian Athletes 

 
Parents/Guardians: Stacey Holley and Calvin Junior Trusdale 
 
Siblings in Rock Hill Schools: Ca’lique Cunningham, a sophomore at Northwestern 
 
Principal:  Dr. Nakia Barnes 
 
Mailing Address: 
1203 Telhamwood Drive 
Rock Hill, SC 29732 

Marketing & Communications Department 
Telephone:  981-1008   -   Fax:  981-1094 



 

Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: February 20, 2020  
SUBJECT: Recognitions for February 24th School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A. Recognition of MLK, Jr. Essay Contest Winners 

This evening, we recognize two Rock Hill High School students who recently participated in the City of Rock 
Hill’s Martin Luther King, Jr. Essay Contest. At the MLK, Jr. interfaith community breakfast, junior Ka’Sheana 
Lightner won the first place and sophomore Brianna Blackwell finished second. Congratulations to each of 
you, and we invite you to share your essay with us this evening. 

 
B. Recognition of Dream Keeper Award Winner – Dr. Sylvia Berry 

Tonight, we recognize Dr. Sylvia Berry for being named the recipient of the 2020 Dream Keeper Award at 
last month’s City of Rock Hill Interfaith Prayer Breakfast. Dr. Berry recently retired from Rock Hill Schools 
after serving our district and community for more than 25 years. Most recently, Dr. Berry served as our 
personnel division as the Director of Recruitment. The award recognizes exemplary displays of committed 
service to the tenets of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., the ultimate dreamer. The ideals of social responsibility, 
political empowerment, diversity, racial harmony, nonviolence, and unselfish service. The award is 
presented by the City of Rock Hill Community Relations Council, which promotes respect, appreciation and 
understanding of diversity among all people in our community by promoting positive human relations and 
reducing discrimination, and assessing and responding to the human relations needs of our community, as 
well as serving as a source of information and advocating and recognizing change to achieve our mission. 
Congratulations, Dr. Berry. 
 

C. Recognition of Sullivan Middle School Math Counts Team 
The Catawba Chapter of the South Carolina Society of Professional Engineers again sponsored the annual 
MATHCOUNTS competition, and for the second consecutive year Sullivan Middle took the championship. 
Tonight, we congratulate and recognize students who competed on the Sullivan team: 

 
• Lauren McCorkle 
• Kevin Nguyen 
• Clayton Stuart 
• Gracie Allen 
• Coach Kayla Poe 

  
Sullivan advances to state competition in March. This popular event began in 1989 and is still part of the 
national effort encouraging young students to study science and engineering. The Catawba Chapter of the 
SCPE is a local member of the larger National Society of Professional Engineers who, along with National 
Council of Teachers, initially began the event in 1984. 

Marketing & Communications Department 
Telephone:  981-1008  -   Fax:  981-1094 



D. Recognition of National Merit Finalists 
We are ecstatic to announce this evening that for the second consecutive year, our district has three 
National Merit Finalist. Congratulations to each student on this outstanding academic achievement. 
 

• Benjamin Michael Gregory – Northwestern High School 
• Courtney Stuart – Rock Hill High School 
• Nolan Promin – Rock Hill High School 

 
The National Merit Scholarship Program is an academic scholarship competition for recognition and 
university scholarships administered by the National Merit Scholarship Corporation, a privately funded, not-
for-profit organization based in Evanston, Illinois.  
 

E. Recognition of Cole Bitting, US Air Force Academy appointment 
Tonight, it is a tremendous honor to recognize Rock Hill High School senior Cole Bitting on his recent 
acceptance of an appointment to the United States Air Force Academy. Valued at more than $425,000 this 
scholarship and his commitment to serve our country deserve our congratulations and sincere thanks. US 
Senator Tim Scott nominated Cole’s application to the Air Force Academy. Cole was also offered an 
appointment to attend the US Naval Academy in Annapolis, Maryland, but has selected to further his 
education in Colorado Springs. Again, congratulations on this outstanding achievement and thank you for 
your commitment to our country. 

 
F. Recognition of All-State Band Students 

Rock Hill Schools is pleased to celebrate our students who have been selected for All-State Band as some of 
the finest instrumentalists in South Carolina. These students were selected through an audition process in 
January that involved two rounds of auditions based on scales, prepared solo, and sight reading brand new 
music to test their musical abilities.  
 
Tonight we would like to recognize the following All-State Band students:  
 

• Jaden Brown, Northwestern High  
• Chandler Herron, Northwestern High  
• Meredith Hoff, Northwestern High  
• Carlyle McDowell, Northwestern High  
• Derek Thompson, Northwestern High  
• Ben Curry, Rock Hill High  
• Cristian Thompson, Rock Hill High  
• Billy Welch, Rock Hill High  
• Kaelin King, Dutchman Creek Middle  

 
While nine of our students received all-state status, a further 33 earned regional status. The fact that such a 
large number of Rock Hill School District students – 42 students in grades 7-12 total – were selected is a 
testament to the outstanding instruction happening in our classrooms each day.  If we have any middle and 
high school band directors in attendance, please rise so we can recognize your good work on behalf of Rock 
Hill students.   



 

ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT THREE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
School Board Work Session   
Monday, January 13, 2020 
Central Office 
 
The Rock Hill School District Three Board of Trustees met this date at 4:00 p.m. with members present 
as follows: Windy Cole, Mildred Douglas, Brent Faulkenberry, Terry Hutchinson, Helena Miller, Robin 
Owens, and Ann Reid.   
 
A motion was made by Windy Cole, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to approve the agenda.  The agenda 
was unanimously approved as presented, 7-0. 
 
Chairman Miller noted that the meeting agenda and the work session packet were posted on the district 
website on Friday, January 10th.  Notification of the meeting was also emailed to the Media on Friday 
evening, January 10th, but due to a technology issue, was not delivered successfully until Monday 
morning, January 13, 2020.   
 
Data Session 
The Board’s data session focused on the Transportation Study and GPS for buses.    
 
Student Call to Order 
Ja’Ream Peterson, a 5th grader at Belleview Elementary School, led in a moment of silence and the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Recognitions 
~Carolina Master Scholar 
Olivia Delgado, a Northwestern High School senior, was recognized for being awarded the designation 
of Carolina Master Scholar by the University of South Carolina. 
 
~York Electric Cooperative 
Markeus Farrand, with York Electric Cooperative, presented the district with a capital credit check in 
the amount of $5,591.80. 
 
Amendment of Agreement regarding City’s Redevelopment Plan 
Mr. Bick Halligan, with Halligan, Mahoney and Williams, provided information on the amendment of 
agreement regarding the City’s Redevelopment Plan.  
 
FY2018-2019 Annual Financial Audit Presentation 
Mr. David Phillips, with Greene Finney, LLP, presented the results of the district’s FY2018-2019 
Financial Audit.  This district received an unmodified opinion on its financial statement which is the 
best opinion that a district can receive. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

School Board Work Session – Page 2 
Monday, January 13, 2020 
Central Office 
 
Section “L” Policies – Interorganizational Relations – 1st read 
The following policies were presented for review:   
  

*Policy LBA – Shared Services & Staff   
*Policy LDA – Student Teaching & Internships 
*Policy LH – Relations with Educational Accreditation Agencies  

 
These policies will be on the Action Agenda at the January 27 business meeting for 1st read. 
 
Section “E” Policies – Business Management – 1st read 
Policy EEAE – Bus Safety Program was presented for review.  This policy will be on the Action 
Agenda at the January 27 business meeting for 1st read. 
 
Dual Language Immersion High School Recommendation 
Dr. John Jones, Chief of Academics and Accountability, and Mrs. Jen Morrison, Executive Director of 
Secondary Education, presented information regarding Dual Language Immersion Pathways, which 
included the high school location recommendation of Rock Hill High School.   
 
New Law Enforcement Courses 
Mrs. Morrison provided the board with information on an addendum to the high school course catalog 
for the next school year.  If approved, the three courses – Criminal Law, Police Patrol, Policy 
Community Relations – will be included in an addendum to the 2020-2021 Catalog and will then be 
incorporated into the 2021-2022 Catalog. 
 
Telepsychiatry Program 
Dr. Nancy Turner, Director of Exceptional Student Education, and Ms. Jenny Sexton, Clinical Director 
of Catawba Mental Health Services, presented information, and offered a demonstration, on 
telepsychiatry. 
 
Other and Future Business 
The Board discussed Other and Future Business. 
 
Executive Session 
A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Brent Faulkenberry, to adjourn open session and 
enter executive session for the following: 
 
~Contractual Matter – Grounds Services 
 
This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 
 
A motion was made by Windy Cole, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to adjourn executive session and 
reconvene open session.  This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 
 
 



 

School Board Work Session – Page 3 
Monday, January 13, 2020 
Central Office 
 
Action as Required from Executive Session 
There was no action from the executive session.    
 
Adjournment 
A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid to adjourn the meeting.  The motion 
unanimously passed, 7-0.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
Chris Gammons 
Executive Administrative Assistant to Superintendent 
and Board of Trustees 



 
ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT THREE BOARD OF TRUSTEES_______________________ 
 
Called Work Session  
Thursday, January 16, 2020 
Central Office 
 
The Rock Hill School District Three Board of Trustees held a called work session on Thursday, January 16, 
2020 at 8:00 a.m. at the Central Office.  Members present were as follows: Windy Cole, Mildred Douglas, Brent 
Faulkenberry, Terry Hutchinson, Helena Miller, Robin Owens, and Ann Reid.  
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Miller who stated the meeting agenda was posted on the website 
on Tuesday, January 13th and the Media were also notified in writing of the meeting on Tuesday, January 13th.  
 
Approval of Agenda 
A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to approve the agenda.  This agenda was 
unanimously approved as presented, 6-0.  (Mrs. Reid arrived after the Approval of Agenda vote.) 
 
Review District Vision, Mission, Goals 
The Superintendent and Board reviewed the district’s vision, mission, and goals. 
 
Executive Session 
A motion was made by Brent Faulkenberry, seconded by Ann Reid, to adjourn open session and enter into 
executive session for the following: 
 
Legal Matters: Receipt of Legal Advice Regarding Policies CBI, GBEA, KHE  
 
 This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 
 
Open Session 
A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, to adjourn executive session and reconvene 
open session.  This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 
 
Action from Executive Session 
There was no action taken from the executive session.   
 
Adjournment 
On a motion by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, the meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
Chris Gammons 
Executive Administrative Assistant to Superintendent 
and Board of Trustees 



 

                                      
 
 
 

Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Monday, January 27, 2020 

        6:00 p.m. - Central Office 
 
 I. Call to Order and Approval of Agenda 
  The Rock Hill School District Three Board of Trustees met this date at 6:00 p.m. with members 

present as follows:  Windy Cole, Mildred Douglas, Terry Hutchinson, Helena Miller, Robin 
Owens, and Ann Reid.  Brent Faulkenberry participated via FaceTime. 
 
Neely Donahue, a fifth grader at Oakdale Drive Elementary School, led in a moment of silence 

            and the Pledge of Allegiance.     
 
 Chairman Miller stated that the local news media had been notified of the agenda for this 

meeting, in writing, on Friday, November 22, 2019.   
 
A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to approve the agenda.   
The agenda was unanimously approved as presented, 7-0. 

   
II. Recognitions 

A. Recognition of Platinum Scoring Students on WIN Assessment 
Thirty-seven students from Northwestern, Rock Hill, and South Pointe High Schools were 
recognized for earning platinum score on the WIN Assessment. 
 

B.  Recognition of Board Member Mildred Douglas – 20 Year Service Award 
 Board Member Mildred Douglas was recognized for 20 years of service on the Board of  
 Trustees.    
 

C.  Recognition of Board Member Ann Reid – 20 Year Service Award 
                   Board Member Ann Reid was recognized for 20 years of service on the Board of Trustees. 
 

D. Recognition of School Board Month & Signing of the SCSBA Ethical Principles 
Board Chair Helena Miller recited the Board Member Ethical Principles as provided by the 
South Carolina School Boards Association.  Following the reading, board members each 
signed the SCSBA Ethical Principles poster. Board members were also provided with two 
story books as a thank you for their years of service. 

 
III. Citizen Participation - None 

 
IV. Consent Action Agenda 

On a motion by Windy Cole, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, the following topics on the 
consent action agenda were unanimously approved, 7-0: the minutes of the December 9, 2019 
combined work session/business meeting; the personnel recommendations as submitted by the 
administration; an addendum to the 2020-2021 high school course catalog; and, the FY18-19 
financial audit.     



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
V.  Action Agenda  

A.  Approval of Section “L” Policies – Interorganizational Relations – 1st read 
A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to approve the following 
policies as a group for 1st read:  
 
*Policy LBA – Shared Services & Staff 
*Policy LDA – Student Teaching & Internships 
*Policy LH – Relations with Educational Accreditation Agencies  

 
This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 
B. Approval of Policy EEAE – Bus Safety Program – 1st read 
A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, to approve Policy EEAE – 
Bus Safety Program, for 1st read.   
 
This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 
  
C.  Approval of Amendment of Agreement regarding City’s Redevelopment Plan 

            A motion was made by Robin Owens, seconded by Ann Reid, to approve and authorize 
            the resolution and third amendment of the City’s Redevelopment Plan.   
 
            This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 
 

D. Approval of Dual Language Immersion High School Recommendation 
A motion was made by Robin Owens, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to approve the 
administration’s Dual Language Immersion High School Recommendation.   

 
            This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 
 
 

VI. Communications - None 
 

VII. Report of the Superintendent 
A.  Announcements 
Superintendent Cook made the following announcements: 
•  On Saturday, February from 10am-12pm at South Pointe High School, we will be hosting 

our annual teacher recruitment fair.  We look forward to meeting with teacher candidates at 
this event, and we invite board members to attend and offer encouragement and support to 
prospective employees. 

• District leaders hosted the fifth Teacher Listen and Learn informational session for teachers 
from across the district on Friday, January 24.  This series of meetings is providing a rich 
opportunity to engage in dialogue with teachers about celebrations, issues and concerns for 
our school district.  To view detailed responses to questions and concerns from past 
Teacher Listen and Learn sessions, you are invited to visit www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/tll.  
Monthly sessions will continue each month through April. 

• The online application for families interested in having their child attend a choice program 
for the 2020-2021 school year will remain open until February 28.  Each choice program is 

http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/tll


 

application-based, and applications must be submitted by the deadline on our website, 
www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/choice.  

• Next month, we will complete the rollout and launch of a new GPS tracking service for our 
school buses.  The Versatrans My Stop mobile app will give parents and guardians secure 
access to information on where their child’s school bus is and what time it is expected to be 
at their stop.  Similar to rideshare apps like Uber and Lyft, this will allow our students and 
parents to better plan for late or on-time arrival of buses and prevent missed pick-ups or 
waiting for extended periods at bus stops on cold, dark and rainy mornings.  We believe 
this new feature will continue to improve the communication between our Transportation 
department and our parents.  

• Our district is honored to participate in a pilot program with 15 other districts in South 
Carolina to develop an eLearning program.  Information about this unique learning 
opportunity for Rock Hill Schools has been shared with our students, teachers, and 
community.  Please mark your calendar for Monday, April 13, 2020 – this scheduled make-
up date will be used as an eLearning day and allow students to make up time lost during the 
water main break in October.  For eLearning days, students will complete assignments at 
home, and school will not be open.  To learn more and to view an overview video of the 
eLearning program in Rock Hill Schools, please visit our website www.rock-
hill.k12.sc.us/elearning.    

• The School Board will next meet on Monday, December 9 in a combined work session and 
board meeting.  The meeting will be streamed on our website and available for viewing on-
demand immediately following the broadcast.  We invite our community to watch meetings 
and interact with the district during our live Facebook broadcasts.       

 
VIII. Review of School Board Work Session – December 9, 2019 and January 13, 2020 

       Chairman Miller reviewed, for the viewing audience, the topics discussed at the December 9 
       and January 13 work sessions. 
 

IX.     Other and Future Business 
The Board discussed other and future business. 

 
X.        Executive Session 
           A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to adjourn open 

    session and enter executive session for  
 

 Personnel Matter:  Hiring 
 

    This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 
 
    A motion was made by Windy Cole, seconded by Bent Faulkenberry, to adjourn 
    executive session and reconvene open session.  This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 
  

XI.    Action as Required from Executive Session 
          A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to accept the 

       administration’s recommendation for District Director of Safety and Security.   
 

               This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 
 

http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/choice
http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/elearning
http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/elearning


 

XII. Adjournment 
       On a motion by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid the Board voted unanimously, 
       7-0, to adjourn the meeting.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

  ______________________________ 
   Secretary 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  ________________________________ 
      Chairman   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by: 
 
Chris Gammons 
Executive Administrative Assistant to Superintendent 
and Board of Trustees            
     



Consent Action Agenda 
 
IV. B. Approval of Personnel Recommendations    
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Personnel Recommendations are submitted to the Board of Trustees confidentially. 



April Work Session  Chairman Miller 
 

 

The April work session will be held on Tuesday, April 14, due to an e-Learning Day on 
Monday, April 13. 
 

 
 

 
 

Combined July Meeting   Chairman Miller 
 
July Combined Work Session/Business Meeting Date  - July 20th 
 

 
 

 

 

 

















   

  Chief of Operations 
  V: 803-981-1010    acox@rhmail.org 
 
 

  

Memo 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 

FROM: Anthony Cox, P.E. 

DATE: February 20, 2020 

SUBJECT: Second Read Approval: EEAE – Bus Safety Program 

CC: Brian Vaughan / Bernard Gill 

   
 
The current EEAE Bus Safety Program policy was reviewed by the board during our E-Policy 
Review – Batch 2 and subsequently approved on December 2018.    Based on changes 
recommended to the state model policy from the September 2019 SCSBA legislative update, 
we have again revised this policy.  
  
Our updates include a few grammar corrections and rephrasing, but the same content 
remains.  The model policy also changes some group references. For example: ‘drivers’ to 
‘transportation staff’ and ‘all employees’ to ‘all school bus drivers and driver supervisory 
staff’.  
 
Two sections were added - Driving record & DUI offenses – based on changes to state 
regulations on transporting public students. 
 
The administrative rule EEAE-R Bus Safety Program has also been revised to be consistent 
with these changes in policy.  Our proposed rule is attached for reference. 
 
We are presenting the EEAE – Bus Safety Program policy for the Board’s approval for the 
second reading at its Business meeting on February 24th. 
 



 

 

PROPOSED 

Policy 
 

BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

Code EEAE Issued MODEL/19 2020             
The safety and welfare of students is the first consideration in all matters pertaining to 
transportation. To that end, district transportation staff will comply with district policies as well as 
with federal and state law. Staff All Employees will immediately report to supervisors any violation 
of safety policies that threatens the safety of a student or staff member. 

 
All vehicles used to transport students will be maintained in such condition as to provide safe and 
efficient transportation service with minimal delays and disruption of such service due to 
mechanical or equipment failure. 

 
In addition to the regular state inspections, each school bus will be inspected by the driver regularly 
to ascertain that it is in safe, clean, and sanitary condition and that all equipment is in good working 
order. 

School Bus Drivers 
 

In order to obtain any one of the South Carolina Department of Education (SCDE)’s school bus 
driver’s certificates, a driver candidate must successfully complete all requirements established by 
law and the related tests of SCDE and the South Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles 
(SCDMV). 

Physical Exam 
 

Before operating a school bus, a driver candidate will have a physical examination, certified by a 
medical examiner (i.e. medical physician, osteopathic physician, physician assistant, advanced 
practice nurse, or chiropractor). The certification will be made on forms provided by the SCDE or 
the United States Department of Transportation. The bus driver candidate will provide the testing 
administrator with the certified physical examination before taking the school bus driver physical 
performance test and the commercial driver’s license skills test. The bus driver candidate will 
provide a copy of the certification to the district. 

 
Bus drivers are expected to have a physical examination every two (2) years as required by state 
law. The district may require additional physical examinations as necessary. 

Driving Record 
 

A driver candidate must not have more than four (4) points against his/her license or driving record, 
including no more than four (4) points against his/her license or driving record or a license 
suspension for a moving violation in the previous twelve (12) months. 

A driver receiving a license suspension for a moving violation or accumulating more than four 
(4) points after employment will have his/her certificate suspended and will be placed on probation, 
suspended without pay, or terminated as deemed appropriate by the superintendent or his/her 
designee based on the nature and severity of the driving offense(s). 

 



 

 

PAGE 2 - EEAE - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
DUI offenses 

 
If a bus driver receives a ticket for DUI, he/she will be suspended without pay and, if convicted 
of DUI, his/her certificate will be revoked, and the driver will be terminated. 

Alcohol and Drug Testing 
 

All school bus drivers and driver supervisory staff will be All employees required to have a 
commercial driver’s license must be tested for alcohol and drug use. The superintendent or his/her 
designee will implement this program. 

 
The term drugs, as used in this policy, refers to controlled substances including, but not limited 
to, marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine (PCP). 

The district prohibits transportation staff all employees subject to CDL requirements from the 
following: 

 
• the use of drugs, unless a written prescription from a licensed doctor or osteopath is provided 

along with a written statement from said individual that the substance does not adversely affect 
the staff member’s ability to safely operate a motor vehicle or perform other safety- sensitive 
functions 

• reporting for or remaining on duty when the transportation staff member driver uses any drugs 
controlled substances 

• the use of alcohol under these conditions: 
- reporting for or remaining on duty while having a blood-alcohol concentration of greater 

than .00. 
- possessing alcohol while driving 
- using alcohol while driving 
- driving within four (4) hours after using alcohol 
- using alcohol for eight (8) hours following an accident, if the transportation staff member 

driver is required to take a post-accident alcohol test 
 

Under the testing program, the district will do the following: 
 
• Test drivers transportation staff for drugs controlled substances and alcohol before 

employment. The district will also test drivers transportation staff for alcohol and drugs 
controlled substances after certain accidents; any time a supervisor has reasonable suspicion 
that a driver has violated federal rules; on a random, unannounced basis; and as part of a follow-
up or return to duty program. 

 
Procedures for this testing will include an evidential breath testing device for alcohol testing. 
Drug Controlled Substance testing will require urine specimen collection and testing by a 
laboratory certified by the U.S. United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

 
• Notify the driver transportation staff orally or in writing before performing an alcohol or drug 

test that federal regulations require the test before performing an alcohol or drug test. 



 

 

• Maintain records of district alcohol misuse and drug use prevention programs. 

PAGE 3 - EEAE - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

• Prohibit a driver transportation staff member from working if the driver he/she violates this 
policy. 

• Provide employees transportation staff with detailed information about drug and alcohol 
misuse, information concerning testing requirements, and information on how and where staff 
can get help for substance abuse. 

• Provide employees transportation staff members with a copy of this policy. 

• Maintain testing results and records under strict confidentiality and release them only in 
accordance with law. 

 
• Furnish supervisors with at least one (1) hour of training on alcohol misuse and another hour 

of training on drug misuse to assist them in making appropriate determinations for reasonable 
suspicion testing. 

 
The district will pay for all pre-employment drug and alcohol testing costs. The district will pay 
for all current employee transportation staff drug and alcohol testing, including reasonable 
suspicion, random, and post-accident testing. 

 
The district will make all offers of employment or transfer to covered positions with the district 
contingent upon drug testing results. The district will not hire or transfer an individual who tests 
positive nor will the district consider individuals who refuse drug testing. 

 
The district will regard current employees refusing transportation staff members who refuse to 
comply with testing requirements as testing positive. In accordance with board policy, the district 
will immediately discipline and may dismiss current employees transportation staff who fall into 
this category. 

Adopted ^ 

Legal References: 
 

A. United States Code of Laws, as amended: 
1. Commercial Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1986, Pub. L. No. 99-570, 100 Stat. 3207. 
2. Omnibus Employee Testing Act of 1991, 49 U.S.C.A. Section 31301, et seq. 

 
B. S.C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended: 

1. Section 59-67-160 - Physical examination of school bus driver. 
 

C. Code of Federal Regulations, as amended: 
1. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 C.F.R. § 300, et seq. 

 
D. S.C. State Board of Education Regulations: 

1. R43-80 - Operation of public student transportation services. 



 

 

MODEL 
Policy 

 

BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

Code EEAE Issued MODEL/19 
The safety and welfare of students is the first consideration in all matters pertaining to 
transportation. To that end, district transportation staff will comply with district policies as well  
as with federal and state law. Staff will immediately report to supervisors any violation of safety 
policies that threatens the safety of a student or staff member. 

 
All vehicles used to transport students will be maintained in such condition as to provide safe and 
efficient transportation service with minimal delays and disruption of such service due to 
mechanical or equipment failure. 

 
In addition to the regular state inspections, each school bus will be inspected by the driver 
regularly to ascertain that it is in safe, clean, and sanitary condition and that all equipment is in 
good working order. 

School Bus Drivers 
 

In order to obtain any one of the South Carolina Department of Education (SCDE)’s school bus 
driver’s certificates, a driver candidate must successfully complete all requirements established 
by law and the related tests of SCDE and the South Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles 
(SCDMV). 

Physical Exam 
 

Before operating a school bus, a driver candidate will have a physical examination, certified by a 
medical examiner (i.e. medical physician, osteopathic physician, physician assistant, advanced 
practice nurse, or chiropractor). The certification will be made on forms provided by the SCDE  
or the United States Department of Transportation. The bus driver candidate will provide the 
testing administrator with the certified physical examination before taking the school bus driver 
physical performance test and the commercial driver’s license skills test. The bus driver  
candidate will provide a copy of the certification to the district. 

 
Bus drivers are expected to have a physical examination every two (2) years as required by state 
law. The district may require additional physical examinations as necessary. 

Driving Record 
 

A driver candidate must not have more than four (4) points against his/her license or driving 
record, including no more than four (4) points against his/her license or driving record or a  
license suspension for a moving violation in the previous twelve (12) months. 

A driver receiving a license suspension for a moving violation or accumulating more than four 
(4) points after employment will have his/her certificate suspended and will be placed on 
probation, suspended without pay, or terminated as deemed appropriate by the superintendent or 
his/her designee based on the nature and severity of the driving offense(s). 



 

 

PAGE 2 - EEAE - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
DUI offenses 

 
If a bus driver receives a ticket for DUI, he/she will be suspended without pay and, if convicted  
of DUI, his/her certificate will be revoked, and the driver will be terminated. 

Alcohol and Drug Testing 
 

All school bus drivers and driver supervisory staff will be tested for alcohol and drug use. The 
superintendent or his/her designee will implement this program. 

 
The term drugs, as used in this policy, refers to controlled substances including, but not limited 
to, marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine (PCP). 

The district prohibits transportation staff from the following: 
 
• the use of drugs, unless a written prescription from a licensed doctor or osteopath is provided 

along with a written statement from said individual that the substance does not adversely 
affect the staff member’s ability to safely operate a motor vehicle or perform other safety- 
sensitive functions 

• reporting for or remaining on duty when the driver uses any drugs 

• the use of alcohol under these conditions: 
- reporting for or remaining on duty while having a blood-alcohol concentration of .02 or 

greater 
- possessing alcohol while driving 
- using alcohol while driving 
- driving within four (4) hours after using alcohol 
- using alcohol for eight (8) hours following an accident, if the driver is required to take a 

post-accident alcohol test 

Under the testing program, the district will do the following: 
 
• Test transportation staff for drugs before employment. (Option: The district will also require 

pre-employment alcohol testing.) The district will also test transportation staff for alcohol and 
drugs after certain accidents; any time a supervisor has reasonable suspicion that a driver has 
violated federal rules; on a random, unannounced basis; and as part of a follow-up or return to 
duty program. 

 
Procedures for this testing will include an evidential breath testing device for alcohol testing. 
Drug testing will require urine specimen collection and testing by a laboratory certified by the 
United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

 
• Notify the transportation staff orally or in writing that federal regulations require the test 

before performing an alcohol or drug test. 

• Maintain records of district alcohol misuse and drug use prevention programs. 

• Prohibit a transportation staff member from working if he/she violates this policy. 



 

 

PAGE 3 - EEAE - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
• Provide transportation staff with information about drug and alcohol misuse, information 

concerning testing requirements, and information on how and where staff can get help for 
substance abuse. 

• Provide transportation staff members with a copy of this policy. 

• Maintain testing results and records under strict confidentiality. 
 
• Furnish supervisors with at least one (1) hour of training on alcohol misuse and another hour 

of training on drug misuse to assist them in making appropriate determinations for reasonable 
suspicion testing. 

 
The (option: district or applicant) will pay for all pre-employment drug (option: and alcohol) 
testing costs. The (option: district or staff member) will pay for all current transportation staff 
drug and alcohol testing, including reasonable suspicion, random, and post-accident testing. 

 
The district will make all offers of employment or transfer to covered positions with the district 
contingent upon drug testing results. The district will not hire or transfer an individual who tests 
positive nor will the district consider individuals who refuse drug testing. 

 
The district will regard current transportation staff members who refuse to comply with testing 
requirements as testing positive. In accordance with board policy, the district will immediately 
discipline and may dismiss current transportation staff who fall into this category. 

Adopted ^ 

Legal References: 
 

A. United States Code of Laws, as amended: 
1. Commercial Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1986, Pub. L. No. 99-570, 100 Stat. 3207. 
2. Omnibus Employee Testing Act of 1991, 49 U.S.C.A. Section 31301, et seq. 

 
B. S.C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended: 

1. Section 59-67-160 - Physical examination of school bus driver. 
 

C. Code of Federal Regulations, as amended: 
1. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 C.F.R. § 300, et seq. 

 
D. S.C. State Board of Education Regulations: 

1. R43-80 - Operation of public student transportation services. 



Policy EEAE Bus Safety Program

Issued 12/18

The safety and welfare of students is the first consideration in all matters pertaining to transportation. To that end, all district
transportation employees will comply with district policies as well as with federal and state law. All employees will immediately
report to supervisors any violation that threatens the safety of a student.

All vehicles used to transport students will be maintained in such condition as to provide safe and efficient transportation service
with a minimum of delays and disruption of such service due to mechanical or equipment failure.

In addition to the regular state inspections, each school bus will be inspected by the driver regularly to ascertain that it is in safe
condition and that all equipment is in good working order.

Physical Exam

Before operating a school bus, a driver candidate will have a physical examination, certified by a medical examiner (i.e.,
medical physician, osteopathic physician, physician assistant, advanced practice nurse, or chiropractor). The certification must
be made on forms provided by the South Carolina Department of Education or the United States Department of Transportation.
The bus driver candidate will provide the testing administrator with the certified physical examination before taking the school
bus driver physical performance test and the commercial driver’s license skills test. The bus driver candidate will provide a copy
of the certification to the district.

Bus drivers are expected to have a physical examination every two years as required by state law. The district may require
additional physical examinations as necessary.

Alcohol and Drug Testing

All employees required to have a commercial driver’s license (CDL) must be tested for alcohol and drug use. The
superintendent or his/her designee will implement this program.

The term “drugs,” as used in this policy, refers to controlled substances including marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines,
and phencyclidine (PCP).

The district prohibits all employees subject to CDL requirements from the following:

the use of drugs, unless a written prescription from a licensed doctor or osteopath is provided along with a written
statement from said individual that the substance does not adversely affect the employee’s ability to safely operate a motor
vehicle or perform other safety-sensitive functions
reporting for or remaining on duty when the driver uses any controlled substances
the use of alcohol under these conditions:

- reporting for or remaining on duty while having a blood-alcohol concentration of greater than .00.

- possessing alcohol while driving

- using alcohol while driving

- driving within four hours after using alcohol

- using alcohol for eight hours following an accident, if the driver is required to take a post-accident alcohol test

Under the testing program, the district will do the following:

Test drivers for controlled substances and alcohol before employment. The district will also test drivers for alcohol and
controlled substances after certain accidents; any time a supervisor has reasonable suspicion that a driver has violated
federal rules; on a random, unannounced basis; and as part of a follow-up or return to duty program.

Procedures for this testing will include an evidential breath-testing device for alcohol testing.  Controlled substance testing
will require urine specimen collection and testing by a laboratory certified by the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services.

Notify the driver orally or in writing before performing an alcohol or drug test that federal regulations require the test.
Maintain records of district alcohol misuse and drug use prevention programs.
Prohibit a driver from working if the driver violates this policy.
Provide employees with detailed information about drug and alcohol misuse, information concerning testing requirements,
and information on how and where drivers can get help for substance abuse.

 

EEAE

EEAE
1 of 2

CURRENT



Provide employees with a copy of this policy.
Maintain testing results and records under strict confidentiality and release them only in accordance with law.
Furnish supervisors with at least one hour of training on alcohol misuse and another hour of training on drug misuse.

The district will pay for all pre-employment drug and alcohol testing costs. The district will pay for all current employee drug and
alcohol testing including reasonable suspicion, random, and post-accident testing.

The district will make all offers of employment or transfer to covered positions with the district contingent upon drug testing
results. The district will not hire or transfer an individual who tests positive nor will the district consider individuals who refuse
drug testing.

The district will regard current employees refusing to comply with testing requirements as testing positive. In accordance with
board policy, the district will immediately discipline and may dismiss current employees who fall into this category.

Adopted 2/28/00; Revised 12/17/18

Legal References:

Federal Law:

Commercial Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 1986, Pub. L. No. 99-570, 100 Stat. 3207.

Omnibus Employee Testing Act of 1991, Pub. L. No. 102-143, 105 Stat. 952.

S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:

Section 59-67-160 - Physical examination of school bus driver.

Federal Regulations:

Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSR), 49 C.F.R. Section 300, et seq.

State Board of Education Regulation:

R43-80 - Operation of public school transportation services.

 

York 3/Rock Hill School District

 

EEAE

EEAE
2 of 2

http://redirector.microscribepub.com/?cat=pub&loc=us&id=99-570&
http://redirector.microscribepub.com/?cat=pub&loc=us&id=102-143&
http://redirector.microscribepub.com/?cat=code&loc=sc&id=59-67&
http://redirector.microscribepub.com/?cat=cfr&loc=us&id=49&spec=300-399
http://redirector.microscribepub.com/?cat=reg&loc=sc&id=43-80&


 

Rock Hill School District Three (see next page) 

Administrative Rule  

 
BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

Code EEAE-R Issued 12/18 PROPOSED 
 
Transportation staff School bus drivers who operate a motor vehicle requiring a commercial 
driver’s license (CDL) and other drivers who perform safety-sensitive functions are subject to a 
drug and alcohol testing program. 
 
The superintendent or his/her designee will answer all questions regarding the board policy or 
regulation or the drug and alcohol testing program. 
 
Definitions 
 
Covered driver. Those individuals driving a vehicle weighing in excess of 26,001 pounds or a 
vehicle transporting 16 or more persons, including the driver, and requiring a CDL to hold the 
driver position. Covered drivers include coaches, teachers, administrators, and others who drive a 
school vehicle meeting these requirements. 
 
Safety-sensitive function. The on-duty functions of 1) waiting to be dispatched; 2) inspecting, 
servicing, or conditioning vehicles or equipment; 3) driving; 4) duties other than driving 
performed in a vehicle; 5) unloading or supervising vehicles; 6) duties required after an accident; 
and 7) repairing, obtaining assistance, or supervising disabled vehicles. 
 
Testing company. An independent private company selected by the district (option: South 
Carolina Department of Education) to provide assistance to individual school districts. 
 
Medical Rreview Oofficer (MRO). Physician employed by the testing company to perform certain 
services related to all covered employees. 
 
Substance abuse professional. A licensed physician or a licensed or certified psychologist, social 
worker, employee assistance professional, or addiction counselor (certified by the National 
Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors Certification Commission) with 
knowledge of and clinical experience in the diagnosis and treatment of alcohol and controlled 
substance-related disorders. 
 
Required hours of compliance. Covered dDrivers covered by this policy must not consume 
alcohol 1) while performing a safety-sensitive function, 2) four hours prior to performing a 
safety-sensitive function, and 3) up to eight hours following a motor vehicle accident or until the 
driver undergoes a post-accident test, whichever occurs first.   
 
The law prohibits the use and ingestion of prohibited drugs at all times. 
 
• On-duty time. All time spent providing a breath sample or urine specimen, including travel 

time to and from the collection site, in order to comply with the random, reasonable 
suspicion, post-accident, or follow-up testing as required by this law. 
 

• Stand down. The practice of temporarily removing an employee from the performance of 
safety sensitive functions based on a report from a laboratory to the MRO of a confirmed 
positive test for a drug or a drug metabolite, an adulterated or a substituted test, before the 
MRO has completed verification of the test results. 

 
 
 



PAGE 2 - EEAE-R - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

Rock Hill School District Three (see next page) 

 
Required Tests 
 
Pre-employment drug testing 
 
• A driver candidate applicant must take a drug test before being hired for a safety-sensitive 

position.  Before any existing worker in a department of transportation driver position will be 
assigned, transferred, or otherwise permitted to operate a commercial motor vehicle on behalf 
of the district for the first time, he/she must also submit to testing. Employment with the 
district is contingent upon the employee receiving negative drug test results.  

   
• The driver candidate applicant will receive written notification of the drug tests prior to 

taking the tests. The candidate applicant will be asked to sign a general consent and release to 
be tested for drugs. 

 
• An employee may be exempt from the pre-employment drug test if he/she participated in a 

drug testing program within 30 days prior to the application for employment and while 
participating in that program was tested for drugs within the last six months (from the date of 
application) or participated in a random drug testing program in the previous 12 months, 
provided that the district has been able to make all verifications required by law. 

 
• If a district contracts with a private company to provide drivers more than once a year, the 

district will assure itself once every six months that the drivers participate in an alcohol and 
controlled substances testing program that meets the rules. 

 
Pre-employment alcohol testing 
 
The district will require pre-employment alcohol testing in accordance with the following. 
 
All individuals considered for employment or transfer with the district and subject to federal 
regulations will be tested. 
 
All tests will be conducted using the alcohol testing procedures of the federal regulation. 
 
Such test must be conducted prior to the new or transferred employee’s performance of safety 
sensitive functions. 
 
Post-accident drug testing 
 
• Prior to performing safety-sensitive duties, covered drivers will receive instruction on post-

accident procedures.  
 
• Districts will conduct alcohol and controlled substance tests as soon after a motor vehicle 

accident as is practical on any driver under these conditions: 
 

- who was performing safety-sensitive functions with respect to the vehicle, if the accident 
involved loss of human life 

- who receives a citation under state or local law for a moving traffic violation arising from 
the accident 

- who was involved in any accident/situation and required to be tested as outlined in the 
Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration Post-Accident Testing Criteria. 

 
• No such driver will use alcohol for eight hours after the accident or until he/she undergoes a 

post-alcohol test, whichever comes first. 
 



PAGE 3 - EEAE-R - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

Rock Hill School District Three (see next page) 

• If an alcohol test is not administered within two hours or if a drug test is not administered 
within 32 hours, the district will prepare and maintain records explaining why the tests were 
not conducted. There is no need to test for alcohol if the test is not administered within eight 
hours after the accident or within 32 hours for drugs. 

 
• Tests conducted by authorized federal, state, or local officials will fulfill post-accident testing 

requirements provided they conform to applicable legal requirements and are obtained by the 
district. Breath tests will validate only the alcohol test and cannot be used to fulfill drug 
testing obligations. 

 
• The Districts will deem covered drivers who do not remain readily available for testing as 

refusing to submit to testing. 
 
Random Tests 
 
• Tests will be conducted on a random basis at unannounced times throughout the year. 
 
• The selection of transportation staff members drivers will be by a scientifically valid random 

process and each transportation staff member driver will have an equal chance of being tested 
each time selections are made.  

 
• The testing company will determine the number of transportation staff members drivers to be 

randomly tested. The minimum annual percentage rate for random alcohol testing will be 10 
percent of the average number of driver positions. For controlled substance testing, the rate 
will be 25 percent. 

 
• Tests for alcohol will be conducted just before, during, or just after the performance of 

safety-sensitive functions. “During” is to enable detection of transportation staff members 
drivers who use alcohol on the job. The purpose of testing “just before” and “just after” is to 
avoid the problem of interrupting some safety-sensitive functions for the performance of a 
test (e.g., driving a school bus). 

 
• Random tests for drugs do not have to be conducted in immediate time proximity to 

performing safety-sensitive functions. Once notified of selection for drug testing, an 
employee a transportation staff member must proceed to a collection site. 

 
Reasonable Suspicion Testing 
 
• Reasonable suspicion observations will be based on specific, contemporaneous, and 

articulable observations concerning the appearance, behavior, speech, or body odor of a 
driver. 
 

• All staff members should report concerns regarding workplace alcohol or drug use or misuse. 
However, reasonable suspicion observations used to justify alcohol or drug testing will be 
made by a transportation staff supervisor or district official who has received DOT mandated 
training consisting of at least 60 minutes of training on the physical, behavioral, speech, and 
performance indicators of alcohol misuse and an additional 60 minutes of training that covers 
these indicators of drug use. 

 
• The person making the determination that reasonable suspicion exists will not conduct the 

test. 
 
• Alcohol tests will be authorized for reasonable suspicion only if the required observations are 

made during, just before, or just after the period of the workday when the employee must 
comply with alcohol prohibitions. If an alcohol test is not administered within two hours of a 



PAGE 4 - EEAE-R - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

Rock Hill School District Three (see next page) 

determination of reasonable suspicion, the district will prepare and maintain a record 
explaining why this was not done. Attempts to conduct alcohol tests will cease after eight 
hours. 

 
• A supervisor or district official who makes a finding of reasonable suspicion must also make 

a written record of the observations leading to a reasonable suspicion drug test within 24 
hours of the observed behavior or before the results of the drug test are released, whichever is 
earlier. 

 
Return to Duty Tests 
 
• A drug or alcohol test will be conducted when a transportation staff member driver who has 

violated the district’s drug or alcohol prohibition returns to performing safety-sensitive 
duties. 

 
• A transportation staff member driver whose conduct involved misuse of drugs may not return 

to duty in a safety-sensitive function until the return to duty drug test produces a verified 
negative result. 

 
• A transportation staff member driver whose conduct involved alcohol may not return to duty 

in a safety-sensitive position until the return to duty alcohol test produces a verified result 
that meets federal and district standards. 

 
Follow-Up Tests 
 
• After returning to duty, a covered driver is subject to six unannounced follow-up tests within 

12 months for alcohol, drugs, or both if the substance abuse professional determines both are 
necessary. 

 
• The substance abuse professional can terminate the follow-up testing requirement after the 

first six tests have been completed or continue the follow-up testing for up to 60 months from 
the date of the driver’s return to duty. 

 
• Alcohol follow-up testing is done just before, during, or just after performing a safety-

sensitive function. 
 
Stand-Down 
 
A covered driver employee will be subject to stand-down only with respect to the actual 
performance of safety-sensitive duties. 
 
No adverse action affecting the covered driver’s employee’s pay and benefits will be taken 
pending the completion of the MRO verification process. This includes continuing to pay the 
covered driver employee during the period of the stand-down in the same way the district would 
have paid him/her had such driver the employee not been stood down. 
 
The verification process will begin no later than the time a covered driver an employee is 
temporarily removed from the performance of safety-sensitive functions. The period of stand-
down for any employee will not exceed five days, unless the district is informed in writing by the 
MRO that a longer period is needed to complete the verification process. 
 
In the event the MRO verifies the test negative or cancels it, the following will occur: 
 
• The district will return a covered driver the employee immediately to the performance of 

safety-sensitive functions. 



PAGE 5 - EEAE-R - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

Rock Hill School District Three (see next page) 

 
• The covered driver employee will suffer no adverse personnel or financial consequences as a 

result. 
 
• No individually identifiable record that the covered driver employee had a confirmed 

laboratory positive, adulterated, or substituted test result is maintained. The district will 
maintain a record of the test only as a negative or cancelled test. 

 
The district may, in its continuing efforts to enhance safety, request a waiver of federal 
prohibitions against standing down a covered driver an employee before the MRO has completed 
the verification process. The written waiver request will be directed to the appropriate federal 
administrator. 
 
The district will not stand down a covered driver an employee in the absence of a waiver or 
inconsistent with the terms of the waiver. 
 
Testing Procedures 
 
Alcohol and split sample controlled substances testing will be conducted by the testing company. 
 
Retention of Records 
 
An employer must maintain certain records pertaining to its alcohol misuse and controlled 
substance use prevention program for a specified period in a secure location with controlled 
access. The MRO/testing company will maintain copies of test results as a back-up. 
 
There is a five-year record-keeping requirement for positive test results, refusals to take tests, and 
other areas. The employer must maintain records related to the collection process for testing for 
two years. The employer will keep records of negative and canceled controlled substances test 
results and alcohol test results of less than 0.02 for a minimum of one year. 
 
The employer will maintain driver drug and alcohol test results and records under strict 
confidentiality and release them only in accordance with law. Upon written request, a driver may 
receive copies of any records pertaining to his/her drug or alcohol tests. The employer will make 
records available to a subsequent employer or other identified persons only as expressly 
requested in writing by the driver. 
 
The information an employer may release is limited to a positive controlled substances test result, 
alcohol test results of 0.04 or greater, and refusals to be tested for the two years preceding the 
date of inquiry. The employer will obtain and review driver drug and alcohol test results and 
records no later than 14 days after the first time a driver performs safety-sensitive functions if it 
is not feasible to obtain the information beforehand. An employer may not permit a driver to 
perform safety-sensitive functions without obtaining the information. 
 
Reporting 
 
Each employer must generate and retain, at a minimum, an annual calendar year summary of the 
results of its alcohol and controlled substance prevention program. The federal government will 
randomly select a sample of employers to report data. The government will notify this group in 
January of the year in which the data are due. The report is due by the following March 15th in 
the format prescribed and provided by the Federal Highway Administration. 
 
Notifications 
 



PAGE 6 - EEAE-R - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

Rock Hill School District Three (see next page) 

Each transportation staff member driver will receive educational materials that explain the 
requirements, together with a copy of the district’s policy and regulations for meeting these 
requirements. The information will identify the following: 
 
• the person(s) designated by the district to answer driver questions about the materials 
 
• the categories of transportation staff members drivers who are subject to drug and alcohol 

testing requirements 
 
• sufficient information about the safety-sensitive functions performed by transportation staff 

member employees to make clear for what period of the work day driver compliance is 
required 

 
• specific information concerning transportation staff member employee conduct that is 

prohibited 
 
• circumstances under which a transportation staff member driver will be tested for drugs 

and/or alcohol 
• procedures that will be used to test for the presence of drugs and alcohol, protect the 

transportation staff member driver and the integrity of the testing processes, safeguard the 
validity of test results, and ensure that test results are attributed to the correct covered driver 
employee 

 
• the requirement that a transportation staff member driver submit to drug and alcohol tests 

administered in accordance with federal regulations 
 
• an explanation of what constitutes a refusal to submit to a drug or alcohol test and the 

attendant consequences 
 
• consequences for covered drivers employees found to have violated the drug and alcohol 

prohibitions including the requirement that the driver be removed immediately from safety-
sensitive functions and the procedures for referral, evaluation, and treatment 

 
• consequences for transportation staff members drivers found to have an alcohol concentration 

greater than 0.00. 
 
• information concerning the effects of drugs and alcohol on an individual’s health, work, and 

personal life; external and internal signs and symptoms of a drug or alcohol problem; and 
available methods of intervening when a drug or alcohol problem is suspected including 
confrontation, referral to an employee assistance program, and/or referral to administrative 
officials 

 
Each transportation staff member driver will sign a statement certifying that he/she has received a 
copy of the above materials. 
 
The district will notify a driver candidate an applicant of the results of a pre-employment drug 
test and alcohol test if the candidate applicant requests such results within 60 calendar days of 
being notified of the disposition of the employment application. 
 
The district will notify a transportation staff member driver of the results of random, reasonable 
suspicion, and post-accident drug tests if the test results are verified positive. The district will 
also tell the transportation staff member driver which controlled substances were verified as 
positive. 
 



PAGE 7 - EEAE-R - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

Rock Hill School District Three (see next page) 

No employer having actual knowledge that a driver has used a controlled substance or tested 
positive for controlled substances will permit the driver to perform or continue to perform a 
safety-sensitive function. 
 
Drivers will inform the district if at any time they are using a controlled substance prescribed by 
their physician for therapeutic purposes. Such a substance may be used only if the physician has 
advised the employee that it will not adversely affect the ability to safely perform safety-sensitive 
functions. 
 
Voluntary Self-Identification Program 
 
The district will establish a voluntary self-identification program consistent with federal 
requirements. Accordingly, a covered driver an employee who admits to alcohol misuse or drug 
use will not be subject to certain referral, evaluation, and treatment requirements provided the 
following occurs: 
 
• The admission is in accordance with the policy and administrative rule. 
 
• The covered driver does not self-identify in order to avoid required testing. 
 
• The covered driver makes the admission prior to performing a safety-sensitive function (i.e., 

prior to reporting to duty). 
 
The covered driver does not perform a safety-sensitive function until the district is satisfied that 
the covered driver employee has been evaluated and has successfully completed education or 
treatment in accordance with the district’s self-identification program guidelines. 
 
Adverse action on the part of the district against any covered driver employee making a voluntary 
admission of alcohol misuse or drug use consistent with this policy and administrative rule is 
prohibited. The district is committed to providing sufficient opportunity for the employee to seek 
evaluation, education, or treatment to establish control over his/her drug or alcohol problem. 
 
Following successful completion of an educational or treatment program, as determined by a 
drug and alcohol abuse evaluation expert (i.e., employee assistance professional, substance abuse 
professional, or qualified drug and alcohol counselor), the covered driver employee will be 
permitted to return to duty. The district will ensure that prior to the covered driver employee 
participating in a safety-sensitive function, the covered driver employee will be required to 
undergo a return to duty testing with a result indicating a breath alcohol content of less than 0.02 
and/or a verified negative test result for drug use, as appropriate. The district may incorporate 
employee monitoring and include other follow-up testing as a part of its return to duty procedures 
under this program. 
 
Enforcement 
 
• If the district determines a covered driver has an alcohol concentration greater than 0.00, the 

covered driver will not perform safety-sensitive functions until the start of his/her regularly 
scheduled duty period, but not less than 24 hours after the administration of the test. 

 
• Any covered driver who refuses to submit to a post-accident, random, reasonable suspicion, 

or follow-up test will not perform or continue to perform safety-sensitive functions. 
 
• A covered driver who in any way violates district prohibitions related to drugs and alcohol 

will receive from the district the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of substance abuse 
professionals and counseling and treatment programs available to evaluate and resolve drug 
and alcohol-related problems. The covered driver employee will be evaluated by a substance 



PAGE 8 - EEAE-R - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

Rock Hill School District Three * 

abuse professional who will determine what help, if any, such the driver needs in resolving 
such a problem. 

 
Any substance abuse professional who determines that a covered driver needs assistance will not 
refer the driver to a private practice, person, or organization in which he/she has a financial 
interest, except under circumstances allowed by law. 
 
• The district may pay for or provide rehabilitation for covered drivers affected by this policy. 

 
• The district may hold a job open for a covered driver affected by the requirements for drug 

and alcohol testing. 
 
 

Termination Disclosure 
 
Nothing in this policy, its supporting regulations, or the law relating to drug and alcohol testing 
limits or restricts the right of the superintendent to discipline a transportation staff member 
driver, up to and including termination, for conduct which violates the school district’s policies 
and procedures. 
 
 
 
Issued 2/28/00; Revised 12/17/18, ^ 
 













































 

Memo 
 
TO:               Dr. Bill Cook, Superintendent 
 
FROM: Dr. V. Keith Wilks, Executive Director of Student Services 
 
Cc: Dr. Luanne Kokolis, Chief of Strategic Planning, Engagement and  
   Program Support 
 
DATE: February 19, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Policy Revision for KBB-Parent Rights and Responsibilities 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Attached are the revisions to Policy KBB-Parent Rights and Responsibility for first read. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Office of Student Services 
803-981-1041    



KBB 
1 of 2 

 

Policy KBB Parent Rights and Responsibilities 

Issued 1/05 PROPOSED 

Purpose: To establish the board's vision for the rights and responsibilities of the parents of the district's students. 

The board has adopted the following statement on the rights and responsibilities of parents/ legal guardian to describe the role of 
the parent/ legal guardians and the role of the school in supporting a successful school experience for each child. 

For purposes of this policy, the term "parent" refers to custodial and noncustodial parents.  

Generally, it is the intent of the board to recognize all the rights, duties, powers, responsibilities, and authority that, by law, a 
parent/legal guardian has in relation to his/her child. For example, every parent/legal guardian has the following rights: 

Every parent has the following rights. 

• to be treated with courtesy by all members of the school staff 
 
• to be respected as an individual regardless of race, creed, national origin, economic status, sex, or age, national origin, 

immigration status, religion, disability, sexual orientation, spousal affiliation, genetic information, any other applicable 
status, protected trait or characteristics, or protections by local, state, or federal law 

• to secure as much help as is available from the school district to further the progress and improvement of his/her child 

• to receive reasonable protection for his/her child from physical harm while under school authority 

• to organize and participate in organizations for parents 

• to participate in his/her child's school activities (unless prohibited by court order) 

Special education 

• to be informed of all programs in special education 

• to appeal the placement, in accordance with established guidelines, of his/her child in a special education class 

Receiving information 

• to be informed of academic requirements of any school program 

• to be informed of school policies and administrative decisions 

• to be informed of procedures of seeking changes in school policies and for appealing administrative decisions 
 
• to expect that school staff will make reasonable attempts to ensure that parents/legal guardians receive important school 
news and messages 

• to be informed of education and cultural programs available to public school children 

Conferences 

• to participate in meaningful parent-teacher conferences to discuss his/her child's school progress and welfare 

Records 

• to inspect his/her child's cumulative record in conformity with current guidelines established by state and federal 
governments 
 
Additionally, every parent/legal guardian has the following responsibilities: 

• to make reasonable efforts to provide for the physical needs of the child 
 
• to prepare the child emotionally and socially to make the child receptive to learning and discipline 
 
• to hold high expectations for academic achievement 
 
• to expect and communicate expectations for success 
 



KBB 
2 of 2 

 

• to recognize that parental involvement in middle and high school is equally as critical as in elementary school 

 
• to ensure attendance and punctuality 

 
• to attend parent-teacher conferences 

 
• to monitor and check homework 

 
• to communicate with the child’s teachers 

 
• to build partnerships with teachers to promote successful school experiences 

 
• to attend, when possible, school events 

 
• to model desirable behaviors 

 
• to use encouraging words 

 
• to stimulate thought and curiosity 

 
• to show support for school expectations and efforts to increase student learning 

 
• to encourage appropriate behavior at school and during school-sponsored events 

 
 
 
 
Adopted 7/22/85; Revised 11/27/89,1/24/05, 02-05-20 Proposed 

 Legal references: 

United States Code, Annotated: 

Section 438 of the General Education Provisions Act, as amended - The Family Education Rights and Privacy Act 
[20 U.S.C. 1232(g)]. 

South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended: 

Section 20-7-100 - Parental right to participate in child's school activities unless prohibited by court order. 
 
Legal References: 
 
A. United States Code of Laws, as amended: 

1. The Family Education Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 U.S.C.A. Section 1232g. 
 
B. S.C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended: 

1. Section 63-5-30 - Parental right to participate in child’s school activities unless prohibited by court order. 
2. Section 59-28-100, et seq. - Parental Involvement in Their Children’s Education Act. 
3. Section 59-59-160 - South Carolina Education and Economic Development Act; parenting counseling conferences. 

 
 
 

York 3/Rock Hill School District 

http://policy.microscribepub.com/redirector/?loc=US&amp;cat=usc&amp;id=20-1232g
http://policy.microscribepub.com/redirector/?loc=SC&amp;cat=code&amp;id=20-7


SCSBA (see next page) 

Policy 

 
PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Code KBB Issued MODEL 
 
The board has adopted the following statement on the rights and responsibilities of parents/legal 
guardians to describe the role of the parent/legal guardian and the role of the school in supporting 
a successful educational experience for each student as well as establishing and maintaining a 
parent-friendly school setting.  
 
For purposes of this policy, the term parent refers to custodial and noncustodial parents. 
 
Generally, it is the intent of the board to recognize all the rights, duties, powers, responsibilities, 
and authority that, by law, a parent/legal guardian has in relation to his/her child. For example, 
every parent/legal guardian has the following rights: 
 
• to be treated with courtesy by all members of the school staff 

 
• to be respected as an individual regardless of race, religion, sex, color, disability, age, national 

origin, immigration status, or any other applicable status protected by local, state, or federal 
law 
 

• to secure as much help as is available from the school district to further the progress and 
improvement of his/her child 
 

• to receive reasonable protection for his/her child from physical harm while under school 
authority 
 

• to organize and participate in organizations for parents  
 

• to participate in his/her child’s school activities (unless prohibited by court order) 
 
Receiving information 
 
• to be informed of academic requirements of any school program 

 
• to be informed of school policies and administrative decisions 

 
• to be informed of procedures for seeking changes in school policies and for appealing 

administrative decisions 
 

• to expect that school staff will make reasonable attempts to ensure that parents/legal guardians 
receive important school news and messages 
 

• to be informed of education and cultural programs available to students in the district 
 
Conferences 
 
• to participate in meaningful parent-teacher conferences to discuss his/her child’s school 

progress and welfare 
 
Records 
 
• to inspect his/her child’s education record in conformity with current guidelines established by 

state and federal law 



PAGE 2 - KBB - PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES  

SCSBA  

Additionally, every parent/legal guardian has the following responsibilities: 
 
• to make reasonable efforts to provide for the physical needs of the child 

 
• to prepare the child emotionally and socially to make the child receptive to learning and 

discipline 
 

• to hold high expectations for academic achievement 
 

• to expect and communicate expectations for success 
 

• to recognize that parental involvement in middle and high school is equally as critical as in 
elementary school 

 
• to ensure attendance and punctuality 

 
• to attend parent-teacher conferences 

 
• to monitor and check homework 

 
• to communicate with the child’s teachers 

 
• to build partnerships with teachers to promote successful school experiences 

 
• to attend, when possible, school events 

 
• to model desirable behaviors 

 
• to use encouraging words 

 
• to stimulate thought and curiosity 

 
• to show support for school expectations and efforts to increase student learning 

 
• to encourage appropriate behavior at school and during school-sponsored events 
 
Cf. KB 
 
Adopted ^ 
 
Legal References: 
 
A. United States Code of Laws, as amended: 

1. The Family Education Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 U.S.C.A. Section 1232g. 
 
B. S.C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended: 

1. Section 63-5-30 - Parental right to participate in child’s school activities unless prohibited by court 
order. 

2. Section 59-28-100, et seq. - Parental Involvement in Their Children’s Education Act. 
3. Section 59-59-160 - South Carolina Education and Economic Development Act; parenting 

counseling conferences. 



KBB 
1 of 2 

 

Policy KBB Parent Rights and Responsibilities 

Issued 1/05--CURRENT 

Purpose: To establish the board's vision for the rights and responsibilities of the parents of the district's students. 

The board has adopted the following statement on the rights and responsibilities of parents to describe the role of the parent and 
the role of the school in supporting a successful school experience for each child. 

For purposes of this policy, the term "parent" refers to custodial and noncustodial parents. 

Every parent has the following rights. 

• to be treated with courtesy by all members of the school staff 

• to be respected as an individual regardless of race, creed, national origin, economic status, sex or age 

• to secure as much help as is available from the school district to further the progress and improvement of his/her child 

• to receive reasonable protection for his/her child from physical harm while under school authority 

• to organize and participate in organizations for parents 

• to participate in his/her child's school activities (unless prohibited by court order) 

Special education 

• to be informed of all programs in special education 

• to appeal the placement, in accordance with established guidelines, of his/her child in a special education class 

Receiving information 

• to be informed of academic requirements of any school program 

• to be informed of school policies and administrative decisions 

• to be informed of procedures of seeking changes in school policies and for appealing administrative decisions 

• to expect that school personnel will make every attempt to ensure that parents receive important school news and 
messages 

• to be informed of education and cultural programs available to public school children 

Conferences 

• to participate in meaningful parent-teacher conferences to discuss his/her child's school progress and welfare 

Records 

• to inspect his/her child's cumulative record in conformity with current guidelines established by state and federal 
governments 

Every parent has the following responsibilities. 

• to make every effort to provide for the physical needs of the child 

• to strive to prepare the child emotionally and socially to make the child receptive to learning and discipline 

• to strive to have the child attend school regularly and on time 

• to encourage and lead the child to develop proper study habits at home 

• to know the school requirements and procedures 

• to speak up to prevent misunderstandings 

• to discuss problems with appropriate persons 

• to work for the success and improvement of the school program 



KBB 
2 of 2 

 

Adopted 7/22/85; Revised 11/27/89, 1/24/05 

Legal references: 

United States Code, Annotated: 

Section 438 of the General Education Provisions Act, as amended - The Family Education Rights and Privacy Act 
[20 U.S.C. 1232(g)]. 

South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended: 

Section 20-7-100 - Parental right to participate in child's school activities unless prohibited by court order. 
 
 

York 3/Rock Hill School District 

http://policy.microscribepub.com/redirector/?loc=US&amp;cat=usc&amp;id=20-1232g
http://policy.microscribepub.com/redirector/?loc=SC&amp;cat=code&amp;id=20-7


   

  Finance 
  V:  803-981-1083    F:  803-980-2017 
 
 

  

 

Memo 
 

TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Terri Smith 
DATE: February 19, 2020 
SUBJECT: Revision of Board Policy KCD for 1st Read    

  
 
Board policy KCD was presented for 1st read at the February 10th board work session.  There 
have been changes since February 10th which are reflected in blue font and strike through of 
text.  A copy of the proposed, model and current version of this policy is attached.   
 
Administration requests approval of the proposed board policy KCD for 1st read. 
 
 
Policy Recommendation 
KCD, Public Gifts/Donations to Schools Recommend removing purpose statement and adopting 

model policy.  Changes since 2/10/2020 work session 
are:  (1) add, in paragraph four, a dollar amount to 
gifts/donations requiring a financial commitment, (2) 
add, in paragraph four, donations of real property may 
be accepted only by the board and (3) add a new 
paragraph for superintendent or designee to evaluate 
gifts/donations over $1,000. 

 















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Dr. William E. Cook 
 
FROM: Dr. Luanne Kokolis 
 
DATE: February 20, 2020 
 
PC: School Board Members 
 
SUBJECT:  CBI Evaluation of Superintendent 
 
 
Attached is current policy CBI Evaluation of the Superintendent and the proposed draft 
policy for 1st read. 



Policy 
 

 CBI Evaluation of Superintendent    CODE CBI    DRAFT 2/2020 
PROPOSED 
Issued 9/19 

 
To maintain effective leadership and to promote professional excellence and improvement  of the 
superintendent’s skills, the board will formally evaluate the superintendent  annually, consistent with the terms 
of the Superintendent’s employment contract with the Board and policies.  Each member of the board will be 
involved  included in the evaluation process. 
 
The board` and superintendent will annually consider what evaluation method(s) will best serve the district and 
agree on the specific written instrument to be used. Using the evaluation instrument, the board will assess the 
superintendent on his/her responsibilities, district and/or school goals, and other measures as agreed upon 
by the board and superintendent. 

The board will provide the superintendent written feedback regarding his/her performance. The document will be 
given to the superintendent and discussed with him/her in an executive session. The superintendent will be allowed 
to respond to the evaluation.  A written summary of the Superintendent’s  evaluation and the superintendent’s response 
will be maintained in the superintendent’s personnel file provided to the Superintendent and placed in his/her 
personnel file. 

The assessment of the superintendent’s performance may result in review of his/her job description and 
appropriate changes will be made to it as needed. The assessment will also establish a foundation for 
identifying new priorities and objectives to be used as a basis for the next year’s evaluation. The board may also 
consider adjustments in the superintendent’s contract and rate of compensation on the basis of the 
evaluation. 

 
Adopted 4/27/78; Revised 10/24/98, 9/23/19 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

York 3/Rock Hill 

School District 
 
 



Policy CBI Evaluation of Superintendent 
 
CURRENT 
Issued 9/19 

 
To maintain effective leadership and to promote professional excellence and improvement of the superintendent’s skills, the 
board will formally evaluate the superintendent annually. Each member of the board will be involved in this evaluation. 

The board and superintendent will annually consider what evaluation method(s) will best serve the district and agree on the 
specific written instrument to be used. Using the evaluation instrument, the board will assess the superintendent on his/her 
responsibilities, district and/or school goals, and other measures as agreed upon by the board and superintendent. 

The board will provide the superintendent written feedback regarding his/her performance. The document will be given to the 
superintendent and discussed with him/her in an executive session. The superintendent will be allowed to respond to the 
evaluation. A written summary of the evaluation and the superintendent’s response will be maintained in the superintendent’s 
personnel file. 

The assessment of the superintendent’s performance may result in review of his/her job description and appropriate changes 
will be made to it as needed. The assessment will also establish a foundation for identifying new priorities and objectives to be 
used as a basis for the next year’s evaluation. The board may also consider adjustments in the superintendent’s contract and 
rate of compensation on the basis of the evaluation. 
Adopted 4/27/78; Revised 10/24/98, 9/23/19 

 
 

York 3/Rock Hill School District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: February 20, 2020  
SUBJECT: Announcements for February 24th School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Bus Driver Appreciation Week 
This week, we celebrate our bus drivers and entire transportation team as part of Bus Driver Appreciation Week. 
Our drivers transport more than 8,500 students daily to and from school while covering more than 10,800 miles 
in our community. We appreciate each and every one of our drivers for the very important job that they do for 
our students.  
 
 
Teacher Listen & Learn 
District leaders hosted the sixth Teacher Listen and Learn informational session for teachers from across the 
district on Wednesday, February 12. This series of meetings is providing a rich opportunity to engage in dialogue 
with teachers about celebrations, issues and concerns for our school district. To view detailed responses to 
questions and concerns from past Teacher Listen and Learn sessions, you are invited to visit www.rock-
hill.k12.sc.us/tll. Monthly sessions will continue each month through April. 
 
 
School Choice Applications Still Open 
The online application for families interested in having their child attend a choice program for the 2020-2021 
school year will remain open until February 28.  Each choice program is application-based, and applications must 
be submitted by the deadline on our website, www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/choice. 
 
 
School Bus Tracking System 
We are nearing the full launch of our new GPS tracking service for our school buses. The Versatrans My Stop 
mobile app will give parents and guardians secure access to information on where their child’s school bus is and 
what time it is expected to be at their stop. Similar to rideshare apps like Uber and Lyft, this will allow our 
students and parents to better plan for late or on-time arrival of busses, and prevent missed pick-ups or waiting 
for extended periods at bus stops on cold, dark and rainy mornings. We believe this new feature will continue to 
improve the communication between our Transportation Department and our parents.  
 
 
eLearning Day Set for April 13 – Reminder for Viewing Audience 
Our district is honored to participate in a pilot program with 15 other districts in South Carolina to develop an 
eLearning program. Information about this unique learning opportunity for Rock Hill Schools has been shared 
with our students, teachers, and community. Please mark your calendar for Monday, April 13, 2020 -- this 
scheduled make-up day will be used as an eLearning day and allow students to make up time lost during the 
water main break in October. For eLearning days, students will complete assignments at home, and school will 

Marketing & Communications Department 
Telephone:  981-1008  -   Fax:  981-1094 



 

 

not be open. To learn more and to view an overview video of the eLearning program in Rock Hill Schools, please 
visit our website www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/elearning. 
 
 
ONE Plan Community Presentation 
We are five weeks away from the March 31st vote on the district’s capital improvement bond. Tomorrow, on 
February 25th at 6 p.m. we will share information with our community at the Kenneth Monroe Transformation 
Center. Additional presentations include the District School Improvement Council meeting on Thursday and 
listen and learn luncheons for area faith-based leaders on March 4th and area Realtors on March 12. 
 
 
Upcoming Board Meetings 
The School Board will next meet on Monday, March 9. The meeting will be streamed on our website and 
available for viewing on-demand immediately following the broadcast. We invite our community to watch 
meetings and interact with the district during our live Facebook broadcasts.  



 
At its work session on February 10, 2020, held at the Central Office, the Board: 
 

• held a professional development session for a BoardDocs demonstration; 
 

• held recognitions; 
 

• watched a demonstration by ATC students; 
 

• discussed Section L, E, K, G and C policies up for revision; 
 

• received the annual Federal Programs report; 
 

• discussed upcoming April and July meetings; 
 

• discussed other and future business; and,  
 

• held an executive session for a contractual matter. 
 



Other and Future Business   Chairman Miller 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



Executive  Session  -  None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adjournment 

 


	0 Agenda 2 24 20
	1 Student to Do Call to Order 2.24.2020
	2 Recognitions 2.24.2020
	4 A 1 MINUTES Work Session 1 13 20
	4 A 2 MINUTES Called Work Session 1 16 20
	4 A 3 MINUTES Business Meeting 1 27 2020
	4 B  Personnel Recommendations
	4 C-D April Work Session, July Combined Meeting
	5 A Section L Policies
	5 B 0 Memo EEAE
	5 B 1 EEAE - Bus Safety Program Proposed
	BUS SAFETY PROGRAM
	School Bus Drivers

	PAGE 2 - EEAE - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM
	Alcohol and Drug Testing

	PAGE 3 - EEAE - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM

	5 B 2 EEAE - Bus Safety Program Model
	BUS SAFETY PROGRAM
	School Bus Drivers

	PAGE 2 - EEAE - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM
	Alcohol and Drug Testing

	PAGE 3 - EEAE - BUS SAFETY PROGRAM

	5 B 3 EEAE - Bus Safety Program Current
	5 B 4 EEAE.R - Bus Safety Program Proposed
	5 C 1 Section K Policies 1st Read Business Meeting
	5 C 2 a Memo Policy Revision KBB 2-19-20
	5 C 2 b Policy-KBB for Draft 2-19-20
	Special education
	Receiving information
	Conferences
	Records
	York 3/Rock Hill School District

	5 C 2 c KBB  - Model Parent Rights and Responsibilities 2-19-20
	5 C 2 d Policy-KBB Current for 2-19-20
	Special education
	Receiving information
	Conferences
	Records
	York 3/Rock Hill School District

	5 C 3 1 Memo 1st Read Policy KCD
	5 C 3 2 Policy KCD for 2020.2.24 Meeting
	5 D Section G Policies
	5 E 1 memo CBI superintendent evaluation business meeting
	5 E 2 Policy-CBI (1) Draft Proposed
	5 E 3 Policy-CBI (1) Current
	CBI

	7 Announcements 2.24.2020
	8 WORK SESSION REVIEW February 10
	9 Other and Future Business
	10-12 Executive Session



